
Board Packet Emailed from CAC 11/12/2021        Page 1 

     California Avocado Commission 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Information 

Date: November 18, 2021 

Time: 9:00 a.m. 

Location: Web/Teleconference 

 

Web/Teleconference URL: 

https://californiaavocado.zoom.us/j/87905114902?pwd=Q1FWRUhWd1dqQS8rdHg5NDZjQ1h2QT09 

Conference Call Number: (669) 900-6833 

Meeting ID: 879 0511 4902 

Passcode: 881037 

 

Meeting materials will be posted online at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at: 

https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/commission/meeting-agendas-minutes 

Board Member and Alternate Attendance 

As of Friday, November 12, 2021, the following individuals have advised the Commission they 

will participate in this meeting via web/teleconference: 

Gary Caloroso 

Jason Cole  

Maureen Cottingham  

Rob Grether  

Jessica Hunter  

Connor Huser  

Ohannes Karaoghlanian 

Rachael Laenen  

Daniella Malfitano  

Daryn Miller  

Michael Perricone  

Andrew Prechtl 

Ryan Rochefort  

Peter Shore  

Charley Wolk

  

https://californiaavocado.zoom.us/j/87905114902?pwd=Q1FWRUhWd1dqQS8rdHg5NDZjQ1h2QT09
https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/commission/meeting-agendas-minutes


Board Packet Emailed from CAC 11/12/2021        Page 2 

Time Item 

9:00 a.m. 1. Call to Order – Ben Kardokus, CDFA Presiding 

a. Announcement of Election Results and Introduction of New Members 

and Alternates 

b. Roll Call/Quorum 

9:05 a.m. 2. Opportunity for Public Comment 

Any person may address the Board at this time on any subject within the 

jurisdiction of the California Avocado Commission. 

9:15 a.m. 3. Election of Officers 

a. Instructions on How Nominations and Voting for Board Officers will be 

Conducted 

b. Nominations and Election of Chairperson 

9:25 a.m. 4. Chairperson Takes Gavel and Presides 

a. Nominations and Election of Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, and Treasurer 

b. Chairperson’s Opening Remarks 

9:40 a.m. 5. Consent Calendar 

a. Consider approval of Board of Director’s meeting minutes of October 

13, 2021 

b. Consider Approval of Proposed 2021-22 Meeting Schedule 

c. 2020-21 Financial and crop update 

9:45 a.m. 6. Consider Succession Task Force Recommendation Regarding Executive 

Search Firm 

10:00 a.m. 7. Consider Budget Amendment No. 1 

10:15 a.m. 8. Marketing Report 

a. 2021 Media Results and Key Learning 

b. Campaign Creative Update 

c. Shop.CaliforniaAvocado.com Update 

11:15 a.m. 9. Industry Affairs Report 

a. California Avocado Grower Profitability Study 

12:00 a.m. 10. Recommend Two Members to Serve on the Hass Avocado Board Avocado 

Sustainability Advisory 

12:15 p.m. 11. Adjourn Meeting 

Disclosures 

The times listed for each agenda item are estimated and subject to change.  It is possible that some of 

the agenda items may not be able to be discussed prior to adjournment.  Consequently, those items 



Board Packet Emailed from CAC 11/12/2021        Page 3 

will be rescheduled to appear on a subsequent agenda. All meetings of the California Avocado 

Commission are open to the public and subject to the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. 

All agenda items are subject to discussion and possible action.  For more information, or to make a 

request regarding a disability-related modification or accommodation for the meeting, please contact 

April Aymami at 949-341-1955, California Avocado Commission, 12 Mauchly, Suite L, Irvine, CA 

92618, or via email at aaymami@avocado.org. Requests for disability-related modification or 

accommodation for the meeting should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  For 

individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in Braille, large print, audiocassette 

or computer disk.  This meeting schedule notice and agenda is available on the internet at 

https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/commission/meeting-agendas-minutes  and 

http://it.cdfa.ca.gov/igov/postings/detail.aspx?type=Notices. 

If you have questions on the above agenda, please contact April Aymami at aaymami@avocado.org 

or 949-341-1955. 

Summary Definition of Conflict of Interest 

It is each member’s and alternate’s responsibility to determine whether they have a conflict of interest 

and whether they should excuse themselves from a particular discussion or vote during a meeting.  

To assist you in this evaluation, the following Summary Definition of Conflict of Interest may be 

helpful. 

A Commission member or employee has a conflict of interest in a decision of the Commission if it is 

reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a material effect, financial or otherwise, on the 

member or employee or a member of his or her immediate family that is distinguishable from its 

effect on all persons subject to the Commission’s jurisdiction. 

No Commission member or employee shall make, or participate in making, any decision in which he 

or she knows or should know he or she has a conflict of interest. 

No Commission member or employee shall, in any way, use his or her position to influence any 

decision in which he or she knows or should know he or she has a conflict of interest. 

mailto:aaymami@avocado.org
https://www.californiaavocadogrowers.com/commission/meeting-agendas-minutes
http://it.cdfa.ca.gov/igov/postings/detail.aspx?type=Notices
mailto:aaymami@avocado.org


• 

• 
• 
• 

•

• 



1 
 

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

October 13, 2021 
 
A web/teleconference meeting of the California Avocado Commission (CAC) Board was held on 
Wednesday, October 13, 2021, with the following people present: 
 

 

ITEM #1 CALL TO ORDER 
Roll Call / Establish Quorum – Item 1.A. 
Rob Grether, CAC chairman, called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. with a quorum present. 
 
Introductions 
April Aymami, CAC industry affairs director, announced the California Department of Food and 
Agriculture (CDFA) and US Department of Agriculture (USDA) representatives, CAC staff and known 
guests participating in the web/teleconference call. She asked for all other guests to announce 
themselves and recorded all participants in attendance. 
 
ITEM # 2 OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT  
Tom Bellamore, CAC president, stated effective January 31, 2022, he would be resigning from his 
position as President of the California Avocado Commission. He noted that this should give the Board 
ample time to find his successor and that he was providing this notice prior to the Board’s Closed 
Session because he had not been included in Closed Session discussions as of late. 
 
ITEM #3 CLOSED SESSION REGARDING APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION OF 
PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF AN EMPLOYEE PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 11126(a) 
President’s Performance Review pursuant to Section 11126(a)(1) of the California Government Code – 
Item 3.A 
The Board may go into closed session to discuss and make recommendations regarding appointment, 
employment or dismissal of an employee – Item 3.B 
Mr. Grether convened a Closed Session of board members, alternates, legal counsel and CDFA 
representative at 9:06 a.m. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
Gary Caloroso 
Jason Cole 
John Cornell 
Rob Grether 
Jessica Hunter 
Ohannes Karaoghlanian 
Rachael Laenen 
John Lloyd-Butler 
Daniella Malfitano 
Daryn Miller (Douglas Alt.) 
Andrew Prechtl 
Ryan Rochefort 
Peter Shore 
 
ALTERNATES PRESENT 
Maureen Cottingham 
Connor Huser 
Doug O’Hara 
Michael Perricone 
Charley Wolk 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT 
Randy Douglas 
 
ALTERNATES ABSENT 
None 
 
OFFICIALLY PRESENT 
Victoria Carpenter, USDA 
Ben Kardokus, CDFA 
George Soares, Kahn, 
Soares & Conway 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Monica Arnett 
April Aymami 
Tom Bellamore 
Zac Benedict 
David Cruz 
Jan DeLyser 
Angela Fraser 
Stacia Kierulff 
Miriam Martinez 
Ken Melban 
Cristina Wede 

GUESTS PRESENT 
David Anderson  
Giovanna Angulo  
Carolyn Becker 
Emiliano Escobedo 
Candace Hollar  
Lauren Kelley 
Kim Kurata 
John Lamb 
Victoria McGee  
John McGuigan 
Marji Morrow 
Steven Muro  
Jill Netzel 
Laura Paden  
Martin Pagh Ludvigsen 
Lecia Rdzak 
Bryan Reugebrink 
Bob Schaar 
Sam Schaitberger 
Matt Schraut  
Catie Stoneberg 

Item 5.A-2



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
October 13, 2021 

Return to open session and announce action taken in closed session, if any – Item 3.C 
Mr. Grether returned to open session at 10:30 a.m. and announced that the board had taken two 
actions during closed session: 
 

1. Per CAC Bylaws, the Board had conducted its annual review of the president and voted to 
maintain Tom Bellamore’s salary at the current level. 

2. The Board voted to retain an executive search firm to conduct a review of internal and external 
candidates for the President/CEO position. 

  
ITEM # 4 CONSENT CALENDAR  
Mr. Grether introduced the consent calendar and asked for questions or comments. With no comments, 
the following motion was put forward: 
 
MOTION: 
Move to approve Consent Calendar Items 4.A through 4.C as presented. 
(Cole/Malfitano) MSC Unanimous                      MOTION 21-10-13-1 
 
The Consent Calendar is included in the October 2021 Board Packet and is attached to the permanent 
copy of these Minutes and identified as EXHIBIT A, Items 4.A through 4.C. 
 
ITEM # 5 TREASURER’S REPORT  
Consider Approval of Letter of Engagement from Macias Gini & O’Connell for Financial Audit Services 
– Item 5.A 
Jason Cole, CAC treasurer, reported that the Finance Committee had met earlier in the week and 
reviewed the letters of engagement from Macias Gini & O’Connell for financial audit services and 
unanimously voted to recommend approval of the letters as presented. 
 
MOTION: 
The CAC Board of Directors approves the MGO Letters of Engagement for Financial Audit 
Services as presented. 
(Rochefort/Cornell) MSC Unanimous                MOTION 21-10-13-2 
 
The Letters of Engagement from Macias Gini & O’Connell are included in the October 2021 Board 
Packet and is attached to the permanent copy of these Minutes and identified as EXHIBIT A, Item 5.A. 
 
Consider Finance Committee Recommendation on 2021-22 Budget and Assessment Rate – Item 5.B 
Mr. Cole stated that the Finance Committee had also discussed the proposed 2021-22 budget and 
assessment rate with a unanimous recommendation to approve the budget as presented with 1.75% 
assessment rate. 
 
Monica Arnett, CAC vice president of finance and administration, presented CAC’s current financial 
position for 2020-21 which reflected a projected ending reserves balance of approximately $9.6 million, 
over a million dollars less than budgeted due to a crop shortfall of 55 million pounds. She also provided 
the Finance Committee’s recommended 2021-22 budget, based on a crop volume of 300 million 
pounds, projected price of $1.25 per pound and level assessment rate of 1.75 percent. She noted that 
the proposed budget of $14.8 million included $9.5 million for marketing programs, $1.5 for industry 
affairs and production research, $3.5 million for administration with the remaining balance for grant 
programs. The proposed 2021-22 budget would draw down reserves by $1.8 million to $7.7 million at 
the end of the 2021-22 fiscal year. 
 
MOTION: 
The CAC Board of Directors approves the 2021-22 budget as presented. 
(Lloyd-Butler/Karaoghlanian) MSC Unanimous               MOTION 21-10-13-3 

Item 5.A-3



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
October 13, 2021 

The CAC Current Financial Situation and Proposed 2021-22 Budget presentation is attached to the 
permanent copy of these Minutes and identified as EXHIBIT B. 
 
ITEM #6 PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Consider Approval of 2021-22 Proposed Action Plans and Budgets – Item 6.A 
Mr. Bellamore reported that the 2021-22 budget approved by the Board set the basis for the 2021-22 
Business Plan that has been presented for Board approval. He noted that in August the Board directed 
management to build the business plan with $9.5 million budgeted for marketing, which had been 
accomplished through reductions in the following program areas: 

• $800K – media placements 
• $200K – consumer public relations 
• $650K – merchandising 
• $190K – merchandise shop 
• $200K – foodservice 

 
Mr. Bellamore stated that of the marketing reductions, consumer marketing (including media) was down 
$1.34 million. He commented that he and CAC staff were available to answer any specific questions 
the Board had about the proposed plan.  
 
Mr. Grether asked if the 2022 crop trended larger, with more volume and revenue, whether CAC would 
have the ability to expand programs in the spring. Jan DeLyser, CAC vice president of marketing, 
commented that the Marketing Committee tracks crop volume, both increases and decreases, in real 
time and if warranted would bring a recommendation to the Board for potential program adjustments. 
Mr. Grether also commented that the Board could discuss budget allocation between CAC departments 
in the spring prior to the development of the 2022-23 budget and business plan. 
 
MOTION: 
The CAC Board of Directors approves the 2021-22 business plan as presented. 
(Laenen/Cole) MSC Unanimous                 MOTION 21-10-13-4 
 
The 2021-22 Business Plan – Draft is included in the October 2021 Board Packet and is attached to the 
permanent copy of these Minutes and identified as EXHIBIT A, Item 6.A. 
 
ITEM #7 ESTABLISH ASSESSMENT RATE FOR 2021-22 FISCAL YEAR 
With discussion already taken place during the Treasurer’s and President’s Reports, there was no 
further discussion regarding the assessment rate and the following motion was offered: 
 
MOTION: 
The CAC Board of Directors moves to set the 2021-22 Assessment Rate at 1.75% of the gross 
dollar value of sales for all varieties during any full or partial month the Federal Hass Avocado 
Promotion, Research, and Information Order (Order) is in effect, and at 3.61% of the gross dollar 
value of sales for all varieties during any full month the federal assessment under the Order is 
not in effect. 
(Karaoghlanian/Cornell) MSC Unanimous        MOTION 21-10-13-5 
 
ITEM #6 PRESIDENT’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 
Mr. Bellamore provided several updates to the Board, including: 
 

• The 2021 PMA Fresh Summit Convention had been canceled and funds paid by CAC for this 
event would carry over to 2022 and not appear on 2021 income statement 

• The USDA had completed their management review of Commission programs, which is typically 
conducted every three to four years, with no findings 

Item 5.A-4



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
October 13, 2021 

• Tom, Jan and Ken presented an overview of CAC operations and programs to the HAB BOLD 
participants last week, which was well received 

• AB 361 had recently passed which suspends provisions of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act 
requiring a physical in-person location for meetings, allowing Boards and Commissions to 
continue operating via web/teleconference until January 31, 2022 

• The November CAC Board meeting will be conducted as a hybrid meeting, with in-person 
participants able to attend at the Commission office in Irvine 

• CAC has conferred with employment legal counsel regarding COVID protocols and, at the 
advice of counsel, will not currently require proof of vaccination for employees and will allow 
employees to continue operating remotely through the end of the year 

 
Ken Melban, CAC vice president of industry affairs, then provided an overview of the results of the 
grower profitability survey conducted in September with responses due back mid-October. He noted 
that approximately 10 percent of commercial growers, representing approximately 10 percent of 
acreage, had responded, with preliminary top-line analysis indicating a positive net profit margin in 
each of the three years analyzed (2018, 2019 and 2020). He stated that Dr. Dennis Tootelian would 
attend the November CAC Board meeting to present the full report of his findings. 
 
Mr. Grether thanked Mr. Bellamore and Mr. Melban for their management of the grower profitability 
survey and the Board for their work in reaching out to growers to encourage their participation in the 
survey. He stated that he was pleased with the response rate and hopeful that more work like this could 
be completed to help CAC develop meaningful programs for the industry. 
 
The Preliminary Top-Line Grower Profitability Study Results are attached to the permanent copy of 
these Minutes and identified as EXHIBIT C. 
 
ITEM #8 CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
Recommend Member and Alternate to Serve on Hass Avocado Committee – Item 8.A. 
Mr. Grether asked Ms. Aymami to provide an overview of the Hass Avocado Board’s request for a 
member and alternate to serve on the Hass Avocado Committee. Ms. Aymami stated that in the Board 
Packet was a letter from HAB Chairman Jorge Hernandez requesting the recommendation from CAC 
for a member and alternate to serve on the HAC for the one-year term beginning November 2021. She 
noted that John Lloyd-Butler and Rachael Laenen were serving as the current HAC member and 
alternate, respectively. Mr. Lloyd-Butler commented that he would not be able to continue serving as 
the HAC member, but that it had been an extremely valuable experience and allowed him to better 
understand the global avocado industry. Ms. Laenen said she would be happy to continue serving as 
the HAC alternate for another term. 
 
MOTION: 
Move to recommend Ohannes Karaoghlanian as member and Rachael Laenen as alternate on 
the Hass Avocado Committee. 
(Cornell/Cole) MSC Unanimous                 MOTION 21-10-13-6 
 
The Letter from HAB Chairman Jorge Hernandez Requesting HAC Representatives is included in the 
October 2021 Board Packet and is attached to the permanent copy of these Minutes and identified as 
EXHIBIT A, Item 8.A.  
 
ADJOURN MEETING 
Mr. Grether asked for any additional comments from Board members. 
 
Doug O’Hara, CAC alternate member, congratulated Angela Fraser on her promotion to CAC director 
trade and legal affairs. He also thanked Mr. Bellamore for his many years of service to CAC and the 
avocado industry. 

Item 5.A-5



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
October 13, 2021 

 
Mr. Grether thanked outgoing Board members Randy Douglas and Doug O’Hara for their service on 
the CAC Board. He also commended Mr. Bellamore on his 27 years of service to the California 
avocado industry.  
 
Mr. Grether adjourned the meeting at 11:08 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
April Aymami, CAC Industry Affairs Director 
 
I certify that the above is a true statement of the Minutes of October 13, 2021, approved by the CAC 
Board of Directors on November 18, 2021.  
 
____________________________ 
Jessica Hunter, CAC Board Secretary 
 
EXHIBITS ATTACHED TO THE PERMANENT COPY OF THESE MINUTES 
EXHIBIT A October 2021 Board Packet 
EXHIBIT B CAC Current Financial Situation and Proposed 2021-22 Budget Presentation 
EXHIBIT C Preliminary Top-Line Grower Profitability Study Results 
EXHIBIT D October 13, 2021 Board Meeting AB 2720 Roll Call Vote Tally Summary 
  

Item 5.A-6



California Avocado Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes 
October 13, 2021 

 
 

 
 

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION 
AB 2720 Roll Call Vote Tally Summary 
To be attached to the Meeting Minutes 

Meeting Name: 
California Avocado 

Commission Regular 
Board Meeting 

Meeting Location: 
Zoom Web/Teleconference 

Meeting Date: 
October 13, 2021 

 
 Attendees Who Voted 

MOTION 
21-10-13-1 

MOTION 
21-10-13-2 

MOTION 
21-10-13-3 

MOTION 
21-10-13-4 

MOTION 
21-10-13-5 

MOTION 
21-10-13-6 

Ryan Rochefort Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Jessica Hunter Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Ohannes Karaoghlanian Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

John Cornell Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Rob Grether 
Did Not 

Vote 
Did Not 

Vote 
Did Not 

Vote 
Did Not 

Vote 
Did Not 

Vote 
Did Not 

Vote 

John Lloyd-Butler Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Jason Cole Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Rachael Laenen Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Daryn Miller Yea Yea Yea Yea 
Did Not 

Vote 
Did Not 

Vote 

Andrew Prechtl Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Peter Shore Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Gary Caloroso Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 

Daniella Malfitano Yea Yea Yea Yea Yea 
Did Not 

Vote 

Outcome Unanimous Unanimous Unanimous Unanimous Unanimous Unanimous 

Exhibit D 

Item 5.A-7



 
 

 
 

 

 

• 

• 
• 

• 

•  



CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION 

2021-22 MEETING SCHEDULE 

November 18, 2021: BOARD MEETING 

• Seating of new Board members

• Election of Board officers

February 24, 2022: BOARD MEETING 

• Committee appointments

• Fill Vacant Seats (if necessary)

• Financial Statement Audit Report

• Approval of Budget Amendment No. 1 (if necessary)

• Approval of CAC as Provider of Avocado Inspection Program Administrative services for the CDFA
for the period from July 2022 through June 2023

• Review/Approval Regarding CAC Line of Credit

• Commencement of 2022-23 Planning Process

May 19, 2022: BOARD MEETING 

• Recommend Members/Alternate for Avocado Inspection Committee appointment

• Review of Corporate Insurance

• Continuation of 2022-23 Planning Process

August 18, 2022: BOARD MEETING 

• 2022-23 Financial / Crop Outlook

• Draft of 2022-23 Business Plan Objectives, Strategies and Tentative Budget

• Approval of Tentative 2022-23 Assessment Rate

October 20, 2022: BOARD MEETING 

• Approval of CPA Letter of Engagement

• Approval of 2022-23 Business Plan and Budget

• Approval of 2022-23 Assessment Rate

• President’s Performance Review

November 17, 2022: BOARD MEETING 

• Seating of new Board members

• Election of Board officers

*CAC ANNUAL MEETING – CAC management will continue to monitor the status of COVID-19 and
explore options for conducting in-person or virtual meeting formats with timing to be determined

Additional Industry Events: 
World Ag Expo 

• February 8-10, 2022, Tulare, CA 

Fruit Logistica 

• February 9-11, 2022, Berlin 

CPMA Convention + Trade Show 

• April 5-7, 2022, Montreal 

PMA Fresh Summit International Convention & Expo 

• October 27-29, 2022, Orlando, FL 

Item 5.B-2



Item 5.C-1 

ITEM 5.C: 2020-21 FINANCIAL & CROP UPDATE 

SUMMARY: 

Financial Position and Operational Indicators 
The following are highlights taken from the Commission’s Statement of Net Position (Balance Sheet & Reserves) 
as of September 30, 2021 and Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Income Statement) 
for the period then ended, with comparison to prior year’s figures: 

9/30/21 9/30/20 
Assets 

Petty Cash $200 $200 
Cash in Bank–Checking Accounts 961,265 3,026,103 
Investments (LAIF & MMA) 9,350,237 10,480,335 

  Subtotal CAC Cash & Investment 10,311,702 13,506,638 
Cash & Investments held for AIP 1,005,407 938,552 

Total Cash & Investment 11,317,109 14,445,190 
Assessment Receivable 1,328,017 2,099,055 
Other (Other Receivables, Prepaids and Fixed Assets) 254,965 248,686 

 Total Assets 12,900,091 16,792,931 

Liabilities & Net Reserves 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 474,487 710,508 
Due to AIP 1,005,407 938,552 
Other 218,204 194,154 

Total Liabilities 1,698,098 1,843,214 

  Total Revenues 10,840,809 14,640,906 
  Total Expenditures 13,981,258 13,674,977 

    YTD Surplus (Deficit) (3,140,449) 965,929 
  Net Reserves-Prior Periods 14,342,442 13,983,788 

     Total Net Reserves 11,201,993 14,949,717 

    Total Liabilities & Net Reserves $12,900,091 $16,792,931 

BOARD INFORMATION



Item 5.C-2 
  

Crop Statistics 
Handlers reported 268.7 million pounds of California avocados were harvested through September 2021 with an 
average price (per pound) reported at 1.21 dollars. An estimated 32 thousand pounds were harvested in October 
2021 with an average price (per pound) of 1.77 dollars. This would bring the total harvested through October 2021 
to 269 million pounds at an average price (per pound) of 1.21 dollars.  
 
The attached year-to-date 2020-21 U.S. Aggregate Avocado Volume by Month Chart shows the actual crop 
volume for all countries of origin with prior year comparison. 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 

• Not applicable 
 
BOARD OPTIONS: 
 

• Discussion item only 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

• Not applicable 
 
EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Balance Sheet and Reserves as of September 30, 2021 
• Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the eleven months ending September 30, 2021 
• 2020-21 Pounds & Dollars by Variety Report (November 2020 – September 2021) 
• 2020-21 U.S. Aggregate Avocado Volume by Month Chart (November 2020 – September 2021) 

 
 

 
 



Balance % Balance % Amount %
ASSETS

Cash and Short Term Investments:
Petty Cash 200                   0.00% 200                   0.00% -                   0.00%
Cash in Bank 961,265           7.45% 3,026,103        18.02% (2,064,838)       -68.23%
Cash in Bank-LAIF & Money Market 9,350,237        72.48% 10,480,335      62.41% (1,130,098)       -10.78%
   Total CAC Cash and Short Term Investme 10,311,702      79.94% 13,506,638      80.43% (3,194,936)       -23.65%

Cash in Bank, LAIF & Money Market (held for A 1,005,407        7.79% 938,552           5.59% 66,855             7.12%

   Total Cash and Short Term Investments 11,317,109      87.73% 14,445,190      86.02% (3,128,081)       -21.65%

Other Current Assets:
Assessment Receivable 1,328,017        10.29% 2,099,055        12.50% (771,038)          -36.73%
Other Receivable 5,630                0.04% 3,861                0.02% 1,769                45.80%
Prepaids 129,399           1.00% 107,700           0.64% 21,699             20.15%
Merchandise Shop Inventory 30,535             0.24% -                   0.00% 30,535             100.00%
   Total Other Current Assets 1,493,581        11.58% 2,210,616        13.16% (717,035)          -32.44%

   Total Current Assets 12,810,690      99.31% 16,655,806      99.18% (3,845,116)       -23.09%

Fixed Assets:
Furniture 64,698             0.50% 97,047             0.58% (32,349)            -33.33%
Software -                   0.00% 1,252                0.01% (1,252)              -100.00%
Land Improvements 24,704             0.19% 38,827             0.23% (14,123)            -36.37%
   Total Fixed Assets 89,402             0.69% 137,125           0.82% (47,723)            -34.80%

   Net Fixed Assets 89,402             0.69% 137,125           0.82% (47,723)            -34.80%

Total Assets 12,900,091      100.00% 16,792,931      100.00% (3,892,840)       -23.18%

LIABILITIES AND NET RESERVES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable & Accrued Expenses 474,487           27.94% 710,508           38.55% (236,021)          -33.22%
Due to AIP 1,005,407        59.21% 938,552           50.92% (66,855)            -7.12%
Other Payable (Vacation/Payroll/Sec. 125) 200,205           11.79% 172,960           9.38% 27,244             15.75%
Research Contract Payable -                   0.00% 3,194                0.17% (3,194)              0.00%
   Total Current Liabilities 1,680,099        98.94% 1,825,214        99.02% (145,116)          -7.95%

Long Term Liabilities:
Deposit Due to CDFA/AIP 18,000             1.06% 18,000             0.98% -                   0.00%
   Total Long Term Liabilities 18,000             1.06% 18,000             0.98% -                   0.00%

   Total Liabilities 1,698,099        100.00% 1,843,214        100.00% (145,116)          -7.87%

Net Reserves:
Net Reserves-Prior Periods 14,342,442      128.03% 13,983,788      93.54% 358,654           2.56%
Surplus (Deficit)-Current Period (3,140,449)       -28.03% 965,929           6.46% (4,106,378)       -425.12%

Total Net Reserves 11,201,993      100.00% 14,949,717      100.00% (3,747,724)       -25.07%

Total Liabilities and Net Reserves 12,900,091      100.00% 16,792,931      100.00% (3,892,840)       -23.18%

Current Year Prior Year Variance

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Net Position

As of September 30, 2021 (with Comparison to Prior Year)

Item 5.C-3



Current Year Vs Prior Year
Actual % Actual % Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Change

Revenues

Assessment Revenues
CAC Assessment Revenue 5,584,362         51.5% 7,841,583         53.56% (2,257,222)       -28.8%
HAB Assessment Revenue 5,038,098         46.5% 6,585,476         44.98% (1,547,377)       -23.5%

Subtotal  Assessment Revenue 10,622,460       98.0% 14,427,059       98.54% (3,804,599)       -26.4%

Other Revenues
Admin & Accounting Fee Revenue (AIP) 55,913              0.5% 55,913              0.38% -                   0.0%
Grant Funding -                   0.0% 3,519                0.02% (3,519)              -100.0%
Pine Tree Ranch Crop Income 62,188              0.6% 65,965              0.45% (3,776)              -5.7%
Interest and Other Income 85,418              0.8% 81,480              0.56% 3,938                4.8%
Merch Shop Income 14,829              0.1% 6,970                0.05% 7,859                112.8%

Subtotal  Other Revenues 218,349            2.0% 213,847            1.46% 4,502                2.1%

Total Revenue 10,840,809       100.0% 14,640,906       100.00% (3,800,098)       -26.0%

Expenses

Marketing Expenses
Consumer Marketing 6,382,318         46.0% 6,141,386         45.99% (240,932)          -3.9%
Merchandising 1,663,357         12.0% 1,665,255         12.47% 1,897                0.1%
Foodservice 724,037            5.2% 590,264            4.42% (133,773)          -22.7%
Consumer Public Relations 860,739            6.2% 888,831            6.66% 28,092              3.2%
Consumer/Trade Living Well 164,320            1.2% 126,766            0.95% (37,554)            -29.6%
Marketing Activities Support 164,353            1.2% 111,994            0.84% (52,358)            -46.8%
Merch Shop 108,955            0.8% 321,729            2.41% 212,773            66.1%

Subtotal Marketing Expenses 10,068,079       72.6% 9,846,225         73.74% (221,854)          -2.3%

Non-Marketing Expenses
Industry Affairs & Production Research 788,730            5.7% 805,361            6.03% 16,631              2.1%
Grant Programs 299,380            2.2% 145,265            1.09% (154,114)          -106.1%
Administration 2,825,069         20.4% 2,878,126         21.55% 53,056              1.8%

Subtotal Non-Marketing Expenses 3,913,179         28.2% 3,828,752         28.67% (84,427)            -2.2%

Total Expenses 13,981,258       100.0% 13,674,977       100.00% (306,280)          -2.2%

Surplus (Deficit) (3,140,449)       100.0% 965,929            100.00% (4,106,378)       425.1%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit)

For the eleven months ending September 30, 2021 (with Comparison to Prior Year)

2020/2021 2019/2020

Item 5.C-4



YTD YTD YTD Actual Vs YTD Budget Annual YTD Actual Vs Annual Budget
Actual % Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget

Revenues

Assessment Revenues
CAC Assessment Revenue 5,584,362      51.51% 6,861,190      (1,276,828)     -18.61% 6,931,641      (1,347,279)     -19.44%
HAB Assessment Revenue 5,038,098      46.47% 6,360,260      (1,322,162)     -20.79% 6,422,812      (1,384,714)     -21.56%

Subtotal Assessment Revenue 10,622,460    97.99% 13,221,450    (2,598,990)     -19.66% 13,354,453    (2,731,993)     -20.46%

Other Revenues
Admin & Accounting Fee Revenue (AIP) 55,913           0.52% 55,913           -                 0.00% 61,000           (5,087)            -8.34%
Grant Funding -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 375,000         (375,000)        -100.00%
Pine Tree Ranch Crop Income 62,188           0.57% 37,500           24,688           65.84% 37,500           24,688           65.84%
From The Grove Income 63,400           0.58% 48,750           14,650           30.05% 65,000           (1,600)            -2.46%
Interest and Other Income 22,018           0.20% 13,750           8,268             60.13% 15,000           7,018             46.79%
Merchandise Shop Income 14,829           0.14% 174,482         (159,653)        -91.50% 190,358         (175,529)        -92.21%

Subtotal Other Revenues 218,349         2.01% 330,395         (112,046)        -33.91% 743,858         (525,509)        -70.65%

Total Revenue 10,840,809    100.00% 13,551,845    (2,711,036)     -20.00% 14,098,311    (3,257,502)     -23.11%

Expenses

Marketing Expenses
Consumer Marketing 6,382,318      45.65% 6,528,333      146,015         2.24% 6,713,665      331,347         4.94%
Merchandising 1,663,357      11.90% 2,076,788      413,431         19.91% 2,848,488      1,185,131      41.61%
Foodservice 724,037         5.18% 729,863         5,826             0.80% 970,000         245,963         25.36%
Consumer Public Relations 860,739         6.16% 967,149         106,410         11.00% 1,000,000      139,261         13.93%
Consumer/Trade Living Well 164,320         1.18% 191,600         27,280           14.24% 202,000         37,680           18.65%
Marketing Activities Support 164,353         1.18% 166,115         1,762             1.06% 201,375         37,022           18.38%
Merchandise Shop 108,955         0.78% 289,578         180,623         62.37% 304,854         195,899         64.26%

Subtotal Marketing Expenses 10,068,079    72.01% 10,949,426    881,347         8.05% 12,240,382    2,172,303      17.75%

Non-Marketing Expenses
Industry Affairs & Production Research 788,730         5.64% 991,267         202,537         40.54% 1,641,219      852,489         102.21%
Grants 299,380         2.14% 300,345         965                0.32% 375,000         75,620           20.17%
Administration 2,825,069      20.21% 3,164,795      339,726         10.73% 3,560,570      735,501         20.66%

Subtotal Non-Marketing Expenses 3,913,179      27.99% 4,456,407      543,228         12.19% 5,576,789      1,663,610      29.83%

Total Expenses 13,981,258    100.00% 15,405,833    1,424,575      9.25% 17,817,171    3,835,913      21.53%

Surplus (Deficit) (3,140,449)     100.00% (1,853,988)     (1,286,461)     69.39% (3,718,860)     578,411         15.55%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit) - Actual vs. Budget

For the eleven months ending September 30, 2021 (with Comparison to Budget)

Item 5.C-5



YTD YTD YTD Actual Vs YTD Budget Annual YTD Actual Vs Annual Budget
Actual % Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget

Consumer Advertising
Media 4,027,073      28.80% 3,980,012      (47,061)          -1.18% 4,000,000      (27,073)          -0.68%
Production 332,942         2.38% 417,000         84,058           20.16% 425,000         92,058           21.66%
Online Marketing 421,376         3.01% 530,395         109,018         20.55% 542,200         120,824         22.28%
Program Administration 1,600,926      11.45% 1,600,926      -                 0.00% 1,746,465      145,539         8.33%

 Subtotal Consumer Advertising 6,382,318      45.65% 6,528,333      146,015         2.24% 6,713,665      331,347         4.94%

Merchandising Promotions
Trade Relations 889,710         6.36% 1,179,463      289,753         24.57% 1,349,188      459,478         34.06%
Retail/Consumer Promotions 439,874         3.15% 506,750         66,876           13.20% 1,007,700      567,826         56.35%
Data, Research & Analysis 308,106         2.20% 356,155         48,049           13.49% 386,600         78,494           20.30%
Administration & Other 25,667           0.18% 34,420           8,753             25.43% 105,000         79,333           75.56%

Subtotal Merchandising Promotion 1,663,357      11.90% 2,076,788      413,431         19.91% 2,848,488      1,185,131      41.61%

Foodservice
Media 107,414         0.77% 108,113         699                0.65% 110,100         2,686             2.44%
Public Relations & Collateral Materials 100,503         0.72% 100,500         (3)                   0.00% 113,000         12,497           11.06%
Foodservice Events 219,418         1.57% 218,000         (1,418)            -0.65% 355,900         136,482         38.35%
Chain Promotions 254,967         1.82% 253,200         (1,767)            -0.70% 335,000         80,033           23.89%
Education Programs 960                0.01% 1,850             890                48.11% 2,000             1,040             52.00%
Program Administration Fees 40,774           0.29% 48,200           7,426             15.41% 54,000           13,226           24.49%

    Subtotal Foodservice 724,037         5.18% 729,863         5,826             0.80% 970,000         245,963         25.36%

Consumer Public Relations
Brand Advocates 288,624         2.06% 320,000         31,376           9.81% 330,000         41,376           12.54%
Public Relations 469,054         3.35% 537,999         68,945           12.82% 545,000         75,946           13.94%
Program Administration 103,061         0.74% 109,150         6,089             5.58% 125,000         21,939           17.55%

    Subtotal Public Relations 860,739         6.16% 967,149         106,410         11.00% 1,000,000      139,261         13.93%

Consumer/Trade Living Well
RDN Ambassadors 137,457         0.98% 150,100         12,643           8.42% 156,500         19,043           12.17%
Industry Partnerships 18,862           0.13% 33,500           14,638           43.69% 33,500           14,638           43.69%
Program Administration 8,000             0.06% 8,000             -                 0.00% 12,000           4,000             33.33%

    Subtotal Consumer/Trade Living 164,320         1.18% 191,600         27,280           14.24% 202,000         37,680           18.65%

Marketing Activities Support
Marketing Planning 89,353           0.64% 91,115           1,762             1.93% 115,875         26,522           22.89%
Center for Produce Safety 50,000           0.36% 50,000           -                 0.00% 50,000           -                 0.00%
"Buy California" Marketing Campaign 25,000           0.18% 25,000           -                 0.00% 25,000           -                 0.00%
Festivals -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 10,500           10,500           100.00%

    Subtotal Marketing Activities Su 164,353         1.18% 166,115         1,762             1.06% 201,375         37,022           18.38%

Merchandise Shop
Cost of Goods Sold 35,148           0.25% 98,664           63,516           64.38% 107,960         72,812           67.44%
Expenses - Variable 4,877             0.03% 56,663           51,786           91.39% 61,814           56,937           92.11%
Expenses - Fees 68,930           0.49% 134,251         65,321           48.66% 135,080         66,150           48.97%

    Subtotal Merchandise Shop 108,955         0.78% 289,578         180,623         62.37% 304,854         195,899         64.26%

Subtotal Marketing Expenses 10,068,079    72.01% 10,949,426    881,347         8.05% 12,240,382    2,172,303      17.75%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit) - Actual vs. Budget

For the eleven months ending September 30, 2021 (with Comparison to Budget)

Item 5.C-6



YTD YTD YTD Actual Vs YTD Budget Annual YTD Actual Vs Annual Budget
Actual % Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget

Industry Affairs
AMRIC Operation 84,052           0.60% 88,975           4,923             5.53% 147,500         63,448           43.02%
Crop Forecasting & Analysis 53,989           0.39% 107,200         53,211           49.64% 121,200         67,211           55.45%
Grower Database 3,580             0.03% 8,000             4,420             55.25% 8,000             4,420             55.25%
Grove ID GIS Project Dmnt 4,379             0.03% 2,600             (1,779)            -68.43% 20,000           15,621           78.10%
Online Information (Grower Web Site) 32,759           0.23% 60,050           27,291           45.45% 70,500           37,741           53.53%
Publications 66,248           0.47% 79,160           12,912           16.31% 104,000         37,752           36.30%
Annual Meeting -                 0.00% 20,000           20,000           100.00% 20,000           20,000           100.00%
Annual Report 12,982           0.09% 10,000           (2,982)            -29.82% 10,000           (2,982)            -29.82%
Water Issues -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 25,000           25,000           100.00%
Field/Technical Support 8,510             0.06% 8,525             15                  0.18% 65,000           56,490           86.91%
Research Program Coordination & Outre 91,686           0.66% 91,700           14                  0.02% 120,000         28,314           23.59%
Legislative & Regulatory Advocacy 66,741           0.48% 66,740           (1)                   0.00% 175,000         108,259         61.86%
Product Registrations -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 4,000             4,000             100.00%
Sustainability Project 5,000             0.04% 5,000             -                 0.00% 50,000           45,000           90.00%
Elections 3,752             0.03% 9,000             5,248             58.31% 10,000           6,248             62.48%
Legal Support 59,433           0.43% 22,000           (37,433)          -170.15% 25,000           (34,433)          -137.73%
Governance Support 8,198             0.06% 19,000           10,802           56.85% 45,000           36,802           81.78%
Referendum 365                0.00% 15,000           14,635           97.57% 15,000           14,635           97.57%
Redistricting 630                0.00% 5,000             4,370             87.40% 5,000             4,370             87.40%
Field Meetings, Seminars & Workshops 1,400             0.01% 1,400             -                 0.00% 32,000           30,600           95.63%
Pine Tree Ranch Field Days 419                0.00% 400                (19)                 -4.64% 6,000             5,581             93.02%
Grower Outreach 2,088             0.01% 2,100             12                  0.58% 19,200           17,112           89.13%
Coalition Dues, Sponsorship & Reports 18,340           0.13% 18,340           -                 0.00% 25,000           6,660             26.64%
Grant Writing -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 2,500             2,500             100.00%
Travel 1,216             0.01% 33,000           31,784           96.31% 40,000           38,784           96.96%
Office Expense 1,316             0.01% 10,450           9,134             87.40% 16,500           15,184           92.02%
Committee Meeting Expense -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 5,000             5,000             100.00%
Demonstration Grove
     Pine Tree - Rent 21,590           0.15% 21,590           -                 0.00% 23,600           2,010             8.52%
     Pine Tree - Grove Management 26,859           0.19% 31,800           4,941             15.54% 40,000           13,141           32.85%
     Pine Tree - Utilities 4,144             0.03% 4,950             806                16.28% 5,400             1,256             23.25%
     Pine Tree - Property Tax & Insurance 1,757             0.01% 2,310             553                23.95% 2,500             743                29.73%
     Pine Tree - Misc Expenses 12,744           0.09% 12,325           (419)               -3.40% 15,000           2,256             15.04%
     Pine Tree - Crop Harvesting 10,293           0.07% 5,400             (4,893)            -90.61% 5,400             (4,893)            -90.61%
     Pine Tree - Crop Hauling -                 0.00% 500                500                100.00% 500                500                100.00%
     Pine Tree - CAC Assessment 1,088             0.01% 750                (338)               -45.11% 750                (338)               -45.11%
     Pine Tree - HAB Assessment 1,317             0.01% 750                (567)               -75.56% 750                (567)               -75.56%

    Subtotal Pine Tree Demonstratio 79,792           0.57% 80,375           583                0.73% 93,900           14,108           15.02%

    Subtotal Industry Affairs 606,875         4.34% 764,015         157,140         20.57% 1,280,300      673,425         52.60%

Production Research
Phenology of Avocado Infection by Botry 50,773           0.36% 50,773           -                 0.00% 67,697           16,924           25.00%
Proactive Mgmt of Avocado Seed and St -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 50,000           50,000           100.00%
Phenology and Ecology of Avocado Lace -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00%
Commercial-Scale Field Testing of Advan 86,250           0.62% 93,750           7,500             8.00% 125,000         38,750           31.00%
Opening Roads for Micropropagation of A 23,797           0.17% 23,893           96                  0.40% 47,786           23,989           50.20%
Safety and Efficacy of Herbicides in Bear 21,035           0.15% 46,836           25,801           55.09% 46,836           25,801           55.09%
Gem Avocado Scarring Study -                 0.00% 12,000           12,000           100.00% 23,600           23,600           100.00%

    Subtotal Production Research 181,855         1.30% 227,252         45,397           19.98% 360,919         179,064         49.61%

Grants
USDA Grant-FAS MAP South Korea 184,997         1.32% 185,331         334                0.18% 200,000         15,003           7.50%
USDA Grant-FAS MAP China 114,383         0.82% 115,014         631                0.55% 175,000         60,617           34.64%

    Subtotal Grants 299,380         2.14% 300,345         965                0.32% 375,000         75,620           20.17%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit) - Actual vs. Budget

For the eleven months ending September 30, 2021 (with Comparison to Budget)

Item 5.C-7



YTD YTD YTD Actual Vs YTD Budget Annual YTD Actual Vs Annual Budget
Actual % Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget Budget Var-Fav(Unfav) % of Budget

Administration
Rent-Office-CAM, Ins, Prop Tax-Mauchly 126,758         0.91% 127,070         312                0.25% 138,701         11,943           8.61%
Rent-Offsite Storage 6,435             0.05% 6,490             55                  0.85% 7,080             645                9.11%
Corporate Insurance 88,089           0.63% 89,000           911                1.02% 89,000           911                1.02%
Office Expense, Supplies & Janitorial 13,141           0.09% 22,225           9,084             40.88% 38,835           25,694           66.16%
Utilities 9,743             0.07% 15,495           5,752             37.12% 16,540           6,797             41.09%
Bank Fees 10,725           0.08% 13,530           2,805             20.73% 15,860           5,135             32.38%
Equip Maint. & Exp. and Capital Lease In 18,599           0.13% 24,325           5,726             23.54% 28,200           9,601             34.05%
Telephone & Postage 18,369           0.13% 27,150           8,781             32.34% 30,470           12,101           39.71%
CPA-Financial Audits 30,461           0.22% 30,975           514                1.66% 30,975           514                1.66%
CPA-Assessment Audits 45,745           0.33% 20,738           (25,007)          -120.59% 20,738           (25,007)          -120.59%
CDFA-Fiscal and Compliance Audit 8,000             0.06% 16,605           8,605             51.82% 16,605           8,605             51.82%
California Dept. of Food & Agriculture 53,410           0.38% 70,350           16,940           24.08% 76,200           22,790           29.91%
U.S. Dept. of Agriculture (AMS) 51,297           0.37% 69,600           18,303           26.30% 75,600           24,303           32.15%
Legal & Other Professional 550                0.00% 550                -                 0.00% 5,000             4,450             89.00%
Salaries/Wages 1,610,680      11.52% 1,786,000      175,320         9.82% 1,950,000      339,320         17.40%
Pension, Payroll Tax & Benefits 555,102         3.97% 606,714         51,612           8.51% 678,385         123,283         18.17%
Board Member District Meetings & Expen -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 3,000             3,000             100.00%
Board Member Entertainment -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 2,000             2,000             100.00%
Board Member Travel, Lodging, Mileage, -                 0.00% -                 -                 0.00% 38,000           38,000           100.00%
Board Meeting Expenses (2,485)            -0.02% 26,750           29,235           109.29% 30,500           32,985           108.15%
Network Maint., Hardware, Software & Li 37,988           0.27% 41,648           3,660             8.79% 51,366           13,378           26.05%
IT Support & Consulting and Other Servic 17,668           0.13% 25,340           7,672             30.28% 31,500           13,832           43.91%
Accounting & Assessment System 4,044             0.03% 4,050             6                    0.14% 7,910             3,866             48.87%
Administration Staff Travel -                 0.00% 8,250             8,250             100.00% 9,000             9,000             100.00%
Depreciation Expense 43,433           0.31% 47,190           3,757             7.96% 51,480           8,047             15.63%
Pension Admin & Legal 26,929           0.19% 34,300           7,371             21.49% 49,300           22,371           45.38%
Dues, Reg, Education, Recruitment & Oth 6,479             0.05% 6,500             21                  0.33% 18,325           11,846           64.65%
Temporary Help 43,909           0.31% 43,950           41                  0.09% 50,000           6,091             12.18%

Subtotal Administration 2,825,069      20.21% 3,164,795      339,726         10.73% 3,560,570      735,501         20.66%

Total Expenses 13,981,258    100.00% 15,405,833    1,424,575      9.25% 17,817,171    3,835,913      21.53%

Surplus (Deficit) (3,140,449)     100.00% (1,853,988)     (1,286,461)     69.39% (3,718,860)     578,411         15.55%

California Avocado Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (Surplus/Deficit) - Actual vs. Budget

For the eleven months ending September 30, 2021 (with Comparison to Budget)

Item 5.C-8



Month Hass
Pounds

Lamb
Pounds

Gem
Pounds

Others
Pounds

Total
Pounds

Hass
Dollars

Lamb
Dollars

Gem
Dollars

Others
Dollars

Total
Dollars

Avg
$/Lb

Nov 2020 5,977,035 1,567 0 24,345 6,002,947 $4,620,733 $3,821 $ $21,353 $4,645,907 $0.774

Dec 2020 3,476,394 51 0 94,434 3,570,879 $2,539,032 $203 $ $54,342 $2,593,577 $0.726

Jan 2021 884,650 0 39,095 923,745 $438,382 0 $ $25,474 $463,856 $0.502

1st QTR 10,338,079 1,618 0 157,874 10,497,571 $7,598,147 $4,024 0 $101,169 $7,703,340 $0.734

Feb 2021 5,692,407 0 75,852 5,768,259 $5,481,457 0 $ $35,721 $5,517,178 $0.956

Mar 2021 23,588,570 87,218 33,952 23,709,740 $29,024,828 0 $115,019 $20,061 $29,159,908 $1.230

Apr 2021 46,595,937 637 824,926 554,068 47,975,568 $56,227,241 0 $1,033,152 $667,781 $57,928,174 $1.207

2nd QTR 75,876,914 637 912,144 663,872 77,453,567 $90,733,526 0 $1,148,171 $723,563 $92,605,260 $1.196

1st Half 86,214,993 2,255 912,144 821,746 87,951,138 $98,331,673 $4,024 $1,148,171 $824,732 $100,308,600 $1.141

May 2021 50,000,458 1,216,612 20,832 51,237,902 $58,890,048 0 $1,397,560 $7,261 $60,294,869 $1.177

Jun 2021 42,874,541 174,219 275,966 168,306 43,493,032 $49,038,487 $215,105 $299,742 $184,921 $49,738,255 $1.144

Jul 2021 35,515,194 6,342,322 0 61,832 41,919,348 $42,170,505 $7,266,162 $ $74,393 $49,511,060 $1.181

3rd QTR 128,390,193 6,516,541 1,492,578 250,970 136,650,282 $150,099,040 $7,481,267 $1,697,302 $266,575 $159,544,184 $1.168

Aug 2021 29,534,500 3,751,463 82,408 142,738 33,511,109 $43,327,333 $4,962,694 $125,506 $199,975 $48,615,508 $1.451

Sep 2021 10,223,109 306,720 12,809 45,713 10,588,351 $16,934,477 $496,238 $18,895 $75,594 $17,525,204 $1.655

4th QTR 39,757,609 4,058,183 95,217 188,451 44,099,460 $60,261,810 $5,458,932 $144,401 $275,569 $66,140,712 $1.500

2nd Half 168,147,802 10,574,724 1,587,795 439,421 180,749,742 $210,360,850 $12,940,199 $1,841,703 $542,144 $225,684,896 $1.249

Total 254,362,795 10,576,979 2,499,939 1,261,167 268,700,880 $308,692,523 $12,944,223 $2,989,874 $1,366,876 $325,993,496 $1.213

Year-to-Date
% of Crop 94.66% 3.94% .93% .47% 100.00% 94.69% 3.97% .92% .42% 100.00%

Year-to-Date
Average $/lb $1.214 $1.224 $1.196 $1.084 $1.213

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION
POUNDS & DOLLARS BY VARIETY

November 2020 Through September 2021

11/5/2021 
10:43:20 AM

Item 5.C-9



Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual  YTD Total YTD Total Total
Nov '19 Nov '20 Dec '19 Dec '20 Jan '20 Jan '21 Feb '20 Feb '21 Mar '20 Mar '21 Apr '20 Apr '21 May '20 May '21 Jun '20 Jun '21 Jul '20 Jul '21 Aug '20 Aug '21 Sep '20 Sep '21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

California -            6.0            0.1            3.6            7.1            0.9            25.3          5.8            31.1          23.7          53.2          48.0          69.8          51.2          59.0          43.5          50.8          41.9          38.7          33.5          29.8          10.5          364.9        268.6        375.4        
Chile 5.0            1.0            1.0            -            1.0            -            1.0            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            8.0            1.0            9.0            
Mexico 180.0        201.0        210.0        220.0        198.0        219.0        193.0        243.0        201.0        257.0        128.0        208.0        185.0        183.0        166.0        194.0        139.0        154.0        143.0        142.0        165.0        136.0        1,908.0     2,157.0     2,110.0     
Peru -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            1.0            -            2.0            1.0            24.0          19.0          63.0          51.0          49.0          52.0          22.0          36.0          161.0        159.0        163.0        
Others* 8.8            7.4            6.9            6.1            8.6            9.0            6.4            9.0            7.7            8.7            2.9            6.4            2.0            4.7            6.7            9.8            12.2          9.9            9.0            10.3          7.0            12.0          78.2          93.3          87.4          

TOTAL 193.8        215.4        218.0        229.7        214.7        228.9        225.7        257.8        239.8        289.4        185.1        262.4        258.8        239.9        255.7        266.3        265.0        256.8        239.7        237.8        223.8        194.5        2,520.1     2,678.9     2,744.8     

*  Others = Florida and Dominican Republic
** California is not final as of this report date

Source(s):  CA = California Avocado Commission
Chile = Hass Avocado Board
Mexico = Hass Avocado Board
Peru = Hass Avocado Board
Others = USDA AMS and FATUS databases

2020-21 FISCAL YEAR

U. S. AGGREGATE AVOCADO VOLUME BY MONTH
All Varieties (million lbs.)

WITH PRIOR YEAR COMPARISON

ALL VARIETIESALL VARIETIESALL VARIETIESALL VARIETIESALL VARIETIES

 ‐

 50.0

 100.0

 150.0

 200.0

 250.0

 300.0

 350.0

Nov '19 Nov '20 Dec '19 Dec '20 Jan '20 Jan '21 Feb '20 Feb '21 Mar '20 Mar '21 Apr '20 Apr '21 May '20 May '21 Jun '20 Jun '21 Jul '20 Jul '21 Aug '20 Aug '21 Sep '20 Sep '21

California Chile Mexico Peru Others*

Item 5.C-10



Item 7-1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, November 18, 2021 

ITEM 7: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 

SUMMARY: 
Management has prepared Budget Amendment #1 which reflects an increase in the Grant Programs 

budget of $100,000 that would be fully offset utilizing recently awarded USDA grant funds. These funds 
have been provided with intended purpose of facilitating a market development program in China. 

Budget Amendment #1 also includes an increase in the Administration department budget for 
$150,000 to engage an executive search firm to provide recruitment services for the position of President. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
• Budget Amendment #1 increases spending by $250,000, $100,000 of which would be offset by

USDA grant funds awarded.

BOARD OPTIONS: 
• Adopt Budget Amendment #1 as presented.
• Modify the proposed budget and approve the modifications.
• Take no action.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
• Management recommends approval of Budget Amendment #1.

EXHIBITS / ATTACHMENTS: 
• Draft CAC 2021-22 Budget Amendment #1.

BOARD ACTION 



DRAFT 11/18/21

ACCT 2021-22 2021-22 INCREASE PERCENT
CODE REVENUES: AMEND #1 % BUDGET % (DECREASE) CHANGE COMMENT
40001 CAC Assessment Revenue $6,398,438 48.8% $6,398,438 49.2% $0 0.00% Assessment rate 1.75%, crop size 300 MM lbs, price $1.25

40011 HAB 85% Rebate Assessment Revenue $5,928,750 45.2% $5,928,750 45.6% $0 0.00%
Subtotal Assessment Revenues $12,327,188 94.0% $12,327,188 94.8% $0 0.00%

42001 Administration & Accounting Fee Revenue (AIP) $61,000 0.5% $61,000 0.5% $0 0.00%
46010 Grant Funding $475,000 3.6% $375,000 2.9% $100,000 26.67% Increase for Grant funding
48001 Interest Income $15,000 0.1% $15,000 0.1% $0 0.00%
48009 From the Grove Income $65,000 0.5% $65,000 0.5% $0 0.00%
48003 Other Income $112,500 0.9% $112,500 0.9% $0 0.00%
47000 California Avocado Merchandise Shop Income $53,621 0.4% $53,621 0.4% $0 0.00%

Subtotal Other Revenues $782,121 6.0% $682,121 5.2% $100,000 14.66%

Total Revenues $13,109,309 100.0% $13,009,309 100.0% $100,000 0.77%

ACCT 2021-22 2021-22 INCREASE PERCENT
CODE EXPENDITURES:  Marketing Programs AMEND #1 % BUDGET % (DECREASE) CHANGE COMMENT

51000 & 55000 Consumer Marketing $5,375,000 35.7% $5,375,000 36.3% $0 0.00%
54000 Consumer Public Relations $785,000 5.2% $785,000 5.3% $0 0.00%
54000 Consumer/Trade Living Well $145,000 1.0% $145,000 1.0% $0 0.00%
52000 Merchandising $2,194,035 14.6% $2,194,035 14.8% $0 0.00%
53000 Foodservice $772,500 5.1% $772,500 5.2% $0 0.00%
59000 Marketing Activities Support $112,500 0.7% $112,500 0.8% $0 0.00%
57000 California Avocado Merchandise Shop $147,330 1.0% $147,330 1.0% $0 0.00%

Subtotal Marketing Programs $9,531,365 63.2% $9,531,365 64.3% $0 0.00%

EXPENDITURES:  Non-Marketing Programs

64000 & 65000 Industry Affairs & Production Research $1,465,412 9.7% $1,465,412 9.9% $0 0.00%
66010 Grant Programs $475,000 3.2% $375,000 2.5% $100,000 26.67% Increase for Grant funding
70000 Administration $3,602,725 23.9% $3,452,725 23.3% $150,000 4.34% See details below

Subtotal Non-Marketing Programs $5,543,137 36.8% $5,293,137 35.7% $250,000 4.72%

Total Expenditures $15,074,502 100.0% $14,824,502 100.0% $250,000 1.69%

Excess Of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ($1,965,194) -15.0% ($1,815,194) -14.0% ($150,000) 8.26%

Estimated Beginning Reserves - Nov. 1 $10,623,582 $10,623,582 $0 0.00%

Estimated Ending Reserves - Oct. 31 $8,658,389 $8,808,389 ($150,000) -1.70%

AMENDMENT #1
2021-22 BUDGET

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION

ORIGINAL vs AMEND #1

ORIGINAL vs AMEND #1

11/11/2021  10:48 AM 1
Item 7-2



DRAFT 11/18/21

Department:  Marketing

ACCT DEPT/ 2021-22 2021-22 INCREASE PERCENT
CODE ACTIVITY AMEND #1 % BUDGET % (DECREASE) CHANGE COMMENT

Consumer Marketing:
51001 Media $3,200,000 33.6% $3,200,000 33.6% $0 0.00%
51002 Production $197,305 2.1% $197,305 2.1% $0 0.00%
55XXX Online Marketing $411,890 4.3% $411,890 4.3% $0 0.00%

51801 & 57002 Program Administration $1,565,805 16.4% $1,565,805 16.4% $0 0.00%
Consumer Marketing Subtotal $5,375,000 56.4% $5,375,000 56.4% $0 0.00%

Consumer Public Relations:
5400X & 5420X Brand Advocates $339,800 3.6% $339,800 3.6% $0 0.00%
5400X & 541XX Public Relations $321,700 3.4% $321,700 3.4% $0 0.00%

5480X Program Administration $123,500 1.3% $123,500 1.3% $0 0.00%
Consumer Public Relations Subtotal $785,000 8.2% $785,000 8.2% $0 0.00%

Consumer/Trade Living Well:
54206 Living Well Brand Advocates $113,700 1.2% $113,700 1.2% $0 0.00%
54201 Industry Partnerships $21,300 0.2% $21,300 0.2% $0 0.00%
54802 Program Administration $10,000 0.1% $10,000 0.1% $0 0.00%

Consumer/Trade Living Well Subtotal $145,000 1.5% $145,000 1.5% $0 0.00%

Merchandising:
520XX Trade Relations $1,001,500 10.5% $1,001,500 10.5% $0 0.00%

521XX & 523XX Retail & Consumer Promotions $813,835 8.5% $813,835 8.5% $0 0.00%
522XX Data, Research & Analysis $293,700 3.1% $293,700 3.1% $0 0.00%
524XX Administration & Other $85,000 0.9% $85,000 0.9% $0 0.00%

Merchandising Subtotal $2,194,035 23.0% $2,194,035 23.0% $0 0.00%

Foodservice:
53001 Media $79,300 0.8% $79,300 0.8% $0 0.00%
53101 Public Relations & Collateral Materials $56,800 0.6% $56,800 0.6% $0 0.00%
53103 Foodservice Events $279,700 2.9% $279,700 2.9% $0 0.00%
53104 Chain Promotions $300,700 3.2% $300,700 3.2% $0 0.00%
53105 Education Programs $2,000 0.0% $2,000 0.0% $0 0.00%
5380X Program Administration $54,000 0.6% $54,000 0.6% $0 0.00%

Foodservice Subtotal $772,500 8.1% $772,500 8.1% $0 0.00%

Marketing Activities Support:
51803 Marketing Planning $87,500 0.9% $87,500 0.9% $0 0.00%
51003 Buy California Marketing Agreement $25,000 0.3% $25,000 0.3% $0 0.00%

Marketing Activities Support Subtotal $112,500 1.2% $112,500 1.2% $0 0.00%

California Avocado Merchandise Shop:
57XXX Cost of Goods Sold $13,000 0.1% $13,000 0.1% $0 0.00%

577XX & 57900 Expenses - Variable $19,275 0.2% $19,275 0.2% $0 0.00%
5780X Expenses - Fees $115,055 1.2% $115,055 1.2% $0 0.00%

California Avocado Merchandise Shop Subtotal $147,330 1.5% $147,330 1.5% $0 0.00%

Total Marketing $9,531,365 100.0% $9,531,365 100.0% $0 0.00%

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION
2021-22 BUDGET
AMENDMENT #1

ORIGINAL vs AMEND #1

11/11/2021  10:48 AM 2
Item 7-3



DRAFT 11/18/21

Department:  Industry Affairs & Production Research

ACCT DEPT/ 2021-22 2021-22 INCREASE PERCENT
CODE ACTIVITY AMEND #1 % BUDGET % (DECREASE) CHANGE COMMENT

Industry Statistics And Information:
64001 AMRIC Operation $86,500 7.7% $86,500 7.7% $0 0.00%
64002 Crop Forecasting and Analysis $145,000 13.0% $145,000 13.0% $0 0.00%
64003 Grower Database $5,000 0.4% $5,000 0.4% $0 0.00%
64004 Grove Identification GIS Project Development $20,000 1.8% $20,000 1.8% $0 0.00%

  Industry Statistics And Information Subtotal $256,500 22.9% $256,500 22.9% $0 0.00%

Grower Communications:
64105 Online Information $46,000 4.1% $46,000 4.1% $0 0.00%
64106 Publications $104,000 9.3% $104,000 9.3% $0 0.00%
64107 Annual Meeting $20,000 1.8% $20,000 1.8% $0 0.00%
64108 Annual Report $12,000 1.1% $12,000 1.1% $0 0.00%

  Grower Communications Subtotal $182,000 16.3% $182,000 16.3% $0 0.00%

Issues Management:
64201 Water Issues $25,000 2.2% $25,000 2.2% $0 0.00%
64202 Field/Technical Support $65,000 5.8% $65,000 5.8% $0 0.00%
64204 Research Program Coordination & Outreach $120,000 10.7% $120,000 10.7% $0 0.00%
64206 Legislative & Regulatory Advocacy $125,000 11.2% $125,000 11.2% $0 0.00%
64208 Product Registrations $4,000 0.4% $4,000 0.4% $0 0.00%
64211 Sustainability Project $50,000 4.5% $50,000 4.5% $0 0.00%

  Issues Management Subtotal $389,000 34.8% $389,000 34.8% $0 0.00%

Legal/Governance:
64301 Elections $10,000 0.9% $10,000 0.9% $0 0.00%
64302 Legal Support $40,000 3.6% $40,000 3.6% $0 0.00%
64303 Governance Support $20,000 1.8% $20,000 1.8% $0 0.00%

  Legal/Governance Subtotal $70,000 6.3% $70,000 6.3% $0 0.00%

Demonstration Grove:
64401 Pine Tree - Rent $24,384 2.2% $24,384 2.2% $0 0.00%
64402 Pine Tree - Grove Management $40,000 3.6% $40,000 3.6% $0 0.00%
64403 Pine Tree - Utilities $5,400 0.5% $5,400 0.5% $0 0.00%
64404 Pine Tree - Property Tax & Insurance $2,500 0.2% $2,500 0.2% $0 0.00%
64405 Pine Tree - Improvements & Misc Expenses $5,000 0.4% $5,000 0.4% $0 0.00%

64406 - 64409 Pine Tree - Harvesting, Hauling, CAC & HAB Assessments $20,919 1.9% $20,919 1.9% $0 0.00%
  Demonstration Grove Subtotal $98,203 8.8% $98,203 8.8% $0 0.00%

Education & Outreach:
64501 Field Meetings, Seminars & Workshops $23,500 2.1% $23,500 2.1% $0 0.00%
64502 Pine Tree Ranch Field Days $2,000 0.2% $2,000 0.2% $0 0.00%
64503 Grower Outreach $13,500 1.2% $13,500 1.2% $0 0.00%

  Education & Outreach Subtotal $39,000 3.5% $39,000 3.5% $0 0.00%

Other:
64801 Dues, Sponsorships, & Reports $20,000 1.8% $20,000 1.8% $0 0.00%
64802 Grant Writing $2,500 0.2% $2,500 0.2% $0 0.00%
64803 Travel $40,000 3.6% $40,000 3.6% $0 0.00%
64804 Office Expense $16,500 1.5% $16,500 1.5% $0 0.00%
64805 Committee Meeting Expense $5,000 0.4% $5,000 0.4% $0 0.00%

  Other Industry Affairs Subtotal $84,000 7.5% $84,000 7.5% $0 0.00%

Total Industry Affairs $1,118,703 100.0% $1,118,703 100.0% $0 0.00%

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION
2021-22 BUDGET
AMENDMENT #1

ORIGINAL vs AMEND #1

11/11/2021  10:48 AM 3
Item 7-4



DRAFT 11/18/21

Department:  Industry Affairs & Production Research

ACCT DEPT/ 2021-22 2021-22 INCREASE PERCENT
CODE ACTIVITY AMEND #1 % BUDGET % (DECREASE) CHANGE COMMENT

Pest & Disease Projects:
65129 Proactive Management of Avocado Seed and Stem Feeding Weevils $50,000 14.4% $50,000 14.4% $0 0.00%
65131 Phenology and ecology of avocado lace bug in Southern California $50,845 14.7% $50,845 14.7% $0 0.00%

   Pest & Disease Project Subtotal $100,845 29.1% $100,845 29.1% $0 0.00%

Breeding, Varieties, Genetics Projects:
65215 Commercial-Scale Field Testing and Potential Release of Rootstocks $135,000 38.9% $135,000 38.9% $0 0.00%

  Breeding, Varieties, Genetics Projects Subtotal $135,000 38.9% $135,000 38.9% $0 0.00%

Cultural Management Projects:
65319 Safety and Efficacy of Herbicides in Bearing Avocado Groves $10,864 3.1% $10,864 3.1% $0 0.00%
6532X PLACEHOLDER - Chloride Mitigation Strategies $75,000 21.6% $75,000 21.6% $0 0.00%
6532X PLACEHOLDER - Soil Microbial Community Enhancement $25,000 7.2% $25,000 7.2% $0 0.00%

   Cultural Management Projects Subtotal $110,864 32.0% $110,864 32.0% $0 0.00%

Total Production Research $346,709 100.0% $346,709 100.0% $0 0.00%

Department:  Grant Programs

ACCT DEPT/ 2021-22 2021-22 INCREASE PERCENT
CODE ACTIVITY AMEND #1 % BUDGET % (DECREASE) CHANGE COMMENT

66020-91 USDA Grant-FAS MAP South Korea $200,000 42.1% $200,000 53.3% $0 0.00%
66021-92 USDA Grant-FAS MAP China $275,000 57.9% $175,000 46.7% $100,000 57.14% Increase for Grant funding

Total Grant Programs $475,000 100.0% $375,000 100.0% $100,000 26.67%

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION
2021-22 BUDGET
AMENDMENT #1

ORIGINAL vs AMEND #1

ORIGINAL vs AMEND #1

11/11/2021  10:48 AM 4
Item 7-5



DRAFT 11/18/21

Department:  Administration

ACCT DEPT/ 2021-22 2021-22 INCREASE PERCENT
CODE ACTIVITY AMEND #1 % BUDGET % (DECREASE) CHANGE COMMENT

Office Expense:
71101 & 71102 Office Rent & Property Tax $142,790 4.0% $142,790 4.1% $0 0.00%

71104 Offsite Storage $7,137 0.2% $7,137 0.2% $0 0.00%
71111 Corporate Insurance $98,050 2.7% $98,050 2.8% $0 0.00%

71121 - 71123 Office Expense, Supplies & Janitorial $38,835 1.1% $38,835 1.1% $0 0.00%
71131 Utilities $16,540 0.5% $16,540 0.5% $0 0.00%
71141 Bank & Payroll Fees $15,860 0.4% $15,860 0.5% $0 0.00%
71151 Equipment Maintenance & Expense $27,600 0.8% $27,600 0.8% $0 0.00%

71161 - 71181 Telephone, Cell Phone, Postage & Courier Service $30,410 0.8% $30,410 0.9% $0 0.00%
  Office Expense Subtotal $377,222 10.5% $377,222 10.9% $0 0.00%

Professional Fees:
71201 CPA-Financial Audits $31,500 0.9% $31,500 0.9% $0 0.00%
71203 CPA-Assessment Audits $20,738 0.6% $20,738 0.6% $0 0.00%
71207 CDFA Fiscal and Compliance Audit $8,715 0.2% $8,715 0.3% $0 0.00%
71211 CDFA Charges $76,200 2.1% $76,200 2.2% $0 0.00%
71221 USDA-AMS Charges $75,600 2.1% $75,600 2.2% $0 0.00%

71231 - 71235 Legal & Other Professional $5,000 0.1% $5,000 0.1% $0 0.00%
78301 Pension Admin & Legal $52,300 1.5% $52,300 1.5% $0 0.00%

  Professional Fees Subtotal $270,053 7.5% $270,053 7.8% $0 0.00%

Personnel Expenses:
71301 Salaries/Wages $1,875,000 52.0% $1,875,000 54.3% $0 0.00%

71311 - 71331 Pension, Payroll Tax & Benefits $646,392 17.9% $646,392 18.7% $0 0.00%
  Personnel Expenses Subtotal $2,521,392 70.0% $2,521,392 73.0% $0 0.00%

Commissioner Expenses:
71401 District Meetings & Expenses $3,000 0.1% $3,000 0.1% $0 0.00%

71402 & 71403 Travel, Lodging, Mileage, Meals & Entertainment $40,000 1.1% $40,000 1.2% $0 0.00%
71404 Board Meeting Expenses $30,500 0.8% $30,500 0.9% $0 0.00%

  Commissioner Expenses Subtotal $73,500 2.0% $73,500 2.1% $0 0.00%

Information Technology:
73001 & 73002 Network Maint., Hardware, Software & Licenses $48,610 1.3% $48,610 1.4% $0 0.00%
73003 & 73005 IT Support, Consulting & IT Service $55,000 1.5% $55,000 1.6% $0 0.00%

73004 Accounting & Assessment System $7,910 0.2% $7,910 0.2% $0 0.00%
  Information Technology Subtotal $111,520 3.1% $111,520 3.2% $0 0.00%

Depreciation, Interest & Other Admin:
78101 Admin Staff Travel $9,000 0.2% $9,000 0.3% $0 0.00%
78201 Depreciation Expense $46,463 1.3% $46,463 1.3% $0 0.00%

78401 - 78501 Dues & Reg., Education, Training, Recruitment, Other $168,575 4.7% $18,575 0.5% $150,000 807.54% Increase for executive search firm fees
78601 Temporary Help $25,000 0.7% $25,000 0.7% $0 0.00%

  Depreciation, Interest & Other Admin Subtotal $249,038 6.9% $99,038 2.9% $150,000 151.46%

Total Administration $3,602,725 100.0% $3,452,725 100.0% $150,000 4.34%

ORIGINAL vs AMEND #1

CALIFORNIA AVOCADO COMMISSION
2021-22 BUDGET
AMENDMENT #1

11/11/2021  10:48 AM 5
Item 7-6



• 

• 

• 

• 

•



Item 8-2



Item 8-3



Item 8-4



Item 8-5



Item 8-6



Item 8-7



•
•

•

Item 8-8



•
•

•
•

Item 8-9



•
•

•
•

Item 8-10



Item 8-11



Item 8-12



•
•
•
•

Item 8-13



•
•
•

Item 8-14



•
•
•

Item 8-15



•
•
•

Item 8-16



•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•
−
−

•
−
−

•
−
−

•
−
−

•
•

Item 8-17



•

•

•

Item 8-18



•

•

•

Item 8-19



•

•

•

Item 8-20



•

•

•

Item 8-21



•

•

•

•

Item 8-22



•
•

Item 8-23



•
•

Item 8-24



Item 8-25



Item 8-26



Item 8-27



•

•

Item 8-28



•

•

Item 8-29



•
•

Item 8-30



•
•

Item 8-31



•
•

Item 8-32



•
•

•

•

•

Item 8-33



•
•
•

Item 8-34



•
•

Item 8-35



•
•
•

Item 8-36



•
•

Item 8-37



•

Item 8-38



•
•
•
•

Item 8-39



•
•
•

Item 8-40



•
•

Item 8-41



•
•

Item 8-42



•
•

Item 8-43



•

•
•

Item 8-44



•
•
•
•

Item 8-45



•

•

•
•

Item 8-46



•
•

•

•

•

Item 8-47



•
•

Item 8-48



•

•
•

Item 8-49



•
•

Item 8-50



•
•
•
•
•

Item 8-51



Item 8-52



Item 8-53



Item 8-54



Item 8-55



•
•

Item 8-56



Item 8-57



Item 8-58



Item 8-59



Item 8-60



•
•
•

Item 8-61



Item 8-62



•

•

•
•

•

•
•

Item 8-63



•
•

•

•

Item 8-64



•
•
•

•
•
•

•

•
•

Item 8-65



•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•

Item 8-66



•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Item 8-67



•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Item 8-68



•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•

Item 8-69



•

•

•

Item 8-70



•

•

•

•

•

Item 8-71



•
•
•

•
•
•

Item 8-72



•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•

Item 8-73



•
•
•

•

•
•

•

•
•

Item 8-74



•
•
•
•

Item 8-75



•
•

•

Item 8-76



•

•

Item 8-77



•
•

Item 8-78



•
•

Item 8-79



•

•

•

Item 8-80



•

•

•
•

Item 8-81



Item 8-82



Item 8-83



•

•

Item 8-84



Item 8-85



•

•

•

Item 8-86



Item 8-87



Item 8-88



•

Item 8-89



•

•
•

Item 8-90



•

•

Item 8-91



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



October 26, 2021 
Mission Viejo, CA 

Via Email 

California Avocado Commission 
Rob Grether, Chairman 

Re: Request for Nominees to Serve on the Avocado Sustainability Advisory  
________________________________________________________ 

Dear Chairman Grether, 

In accordance with the recent board approval of the Hass Avocado Board (HAB) Avocado Sustainability Center 
(ASC), and the Avocado Sustainability Advisory (ASA) appointment and nomination process on September 20, 
2021(attached for your reference), I am writing to seek the names of two (2) individuals who wish to serve as 
the California Avocado Commission (CAC) representative members on the ASA.  Please provide the names for 
the two-member positions by November 26, 2021. In choosing your nominees, it would be preferable that the 
individuals meet the criteria laid out in the HAB-approved Functions and Responsibilities for the ASA that is also 
attached.  HAB will pay for all expenses incurred by the advisory members according to HAB’s Travel Policy. 

The Avocado Sustainability Advisory members will be appointed by the board shortly after the annual meeting, 
held on December 2, 2021. The first meeting of the newly appointed ASA will occur sometime in January of 
2022. The term of the ASA shall be one year but may serve until a new ASA is seated. Please note that ASA will 
meet numerous times a year, especially in the early stages of getting the ASC up and running.   

We believe the ASC and the ASA will accelerate the sustainability effort of the avocado industry in the United 
States. HAB looks forward to continuing the engagement with your organization and receiving your nomination 
no later than November 26, 2021. If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact Emiliano Escobedo 
or me. 

Sincerely, 

Salvador Dominguez, Vice Chairman 
Hass Avocado Board  

cc: Tom Bellamore 

Attachments:  
• Avocado Sustainability Advisory Functions and Responsibilities
• Article 7 from HAB Bylaws
• Travel Policy

Item 10-2



BOARD APPROVED 9-20-2021 
USDA APPROVED - pending 

 
 

Avocado Sustainability Advisory 
Functions and Responsibilities 

 

 

 

ADVISORY FUNCTIONS AND PURPOSE 

The Avocado Sustainability Advisory (ASA) shall be governed in its deliberations and in the 
transaction of business by the Bylaws of the Hass Avocado Board (HAB) and by the provisions of 
both the Hass Avocado Promotion, Research and Information Act (Act) and the Hass Avocado 
Promotion, Research and Information Order (Order).  

Through its leadership, the ASA will provide direction in alignment with the Hass Avocado 
Board’s overall purpose, mission, vision and guiding values that results in the Avocado 
Sustainability Center (ASC) becoming the premier provider of sustainability research, data and 
information for the Hass avocado industry and a trusted thought-leader in the field of 
sustainability and agriculture that will provide a better future for the industry. Moreover, the ASA 
will seek to build and ensure a productive culture fostering the collaboration and exchange of 
ideas and information, taking into consideration the sustainability interests and goals of the 
geographic regions represented by associations that receive assessments pursuant to the Act and 
the Order. 

COMPOSITION OF THE ASA AND TERM 

The ASA will be comprised of two (2) HAB Board members and two (2) representatives of each 
state or importer organization that receives assessments pursuant to the Act and the Order. All 
ASA members shall be appointed in accordance with the HAB Bylaws. The term of each ASA 
member shall be in accordance with the HAB Bylaws. 

ASA MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES 

Each ASA member will abide by the Hass Avocado Board member governance roles and 
responsibilities and abide by HAB Bylaws, policies and procedures, and the Act's provisions and 
the Order that govern the HAB.  

Each ASA member will take an active and constructive role in helping the ASA perform its work. 
ASA members will exemplify the guiding principles of the ASA and will bring value to the ASA 
through being: 

1. An engaged representative of their respective associations 

ASA members will be prepared to represent their region and association to the best of their 
ability. Members will play an active role by participating in discussions that are happening in 

Item 10-3



their specific region and will relay those findings to the ASA. Members will be a voice for their 
respective association and will be responsible for serving as a liaison between their 
association and the ASA to share updates between the two. Members must be effective 
communicators and a reliable conduit to their associations to keep dialogue open and 
maintain a constant flow of information between the two groups.   

2. Knowledge of sustainability practices  

Members will take the necessary steps and actions to remain well-informed on all aspects of 
sustainability issues, specifically across the three main pillars: people, planet and profit. 
Members will be oriented towards science and research and will abide by the guiding values of 
the ASA, ensuring that the work of the ASA is focused on providing a better future for 
generations to come.  

In addition to compliance with the conflict-of-interest policy observed by the Hass Avocado 
Board, members will conduct the business of the ASA with loyalty to the HAB and the 
Avocado Sustainability Center, bringing independent-mindedness without bias to any personal, 
professional or organizational affiliation.  

3. An active, prepared, and committed participant  

Working collegially in a productive and respectful manner, the ASA members will bring their 
expertise and experience from their respective cultures, associations and geographies to their 
ASA duties to work in support of the Avocado Sustainability Center and its constituents. 

Members will be active participants, including being fully prepared for meetings and making 
meeting attendance, participation, and follow-through a priority, as well as taking the initiative 
to be an informed representative on sustainability as it relates to the ASA. Members will 
ensure productive and strategic dialogue is employed to move the interests of the ASA 
forward, without bias to any personal, professional or organizational affiliation. 

In addition to the responsibilities outlined above, the ASA will be responsible for the annual 
nomination of an ASA Chairperson and the submission of that nomination to the Hass Avocado 
Board. The ASA will be expected to nominate a candidate that has the best interest of the 
industry in mind and who will exemplify the guiding principles of the ASA.  

 

 

Item 10-4



From HAB Bylaws 
Board Approved 9/20/2021 

USDA Approved - pending 

ARTICLE 7 

Avocado Sustainability Advisory 

Section 1. There shall be a committee referred to as the Avocado Sustainability 

Advisory (ASA) and its role is to govern the Avocado Sustainability Center (ASC). 

Section 2.  The committee shall be composed of (i) two (2) HAB Board members 

appointed by the HAB Chairperson and (ii) two (2) representatives of each state or 

importer organization that receives assessments pursuant to the Act and the Order.  

Each respective state or importer organization shall nominate two (2) representatives 

selected from names submitted by the stakeholders of such respective organizations 

after notification is made to affected stakeholders regarding the nomination process. The 

HAB Chairperson shall then appoint to the Committee the two (2) nominated 

representatives of each such state or importer organization.  If no names are nominated 

by a respective state or importer organization, then the HAB Chairperson shall select and 

appoint two (2) members of the committee on behalf of such respective state or importer 

organization. 
Section 3. The committee will nominate a committee Chairperson and submit the 

name to the HAB Chairperson.  The HAB Chairperson will appoint the committee 

chairperson nominated by the committee. If no chairperson is nominated by the 

committee, then the HAB Chairperson shall select and appoint a committee chairperson. 

Section 4.  A member’s term of service on the committee shall be for one (1) year, 

but a member may continue to serve past one (1) year until a new committee has been 

appointed.  A committee member may be reappointed to serve successive one (1) year 

terms. 

Section 5.  To constitute a quorum for a committee meeting, at least one more 

than half of those assigned to the committee must be present. No proxy voting shall be 

allowed at a committee meeting.  

Section 6. For any action to be approved by the committee, it must receive the 

concurring votes of members representing more than 66 percent of those present and 

voting. 

Item 10-5



 
 
 
 
 
 

Travel Policy 
 

Amended & Approved by the Board: 09/12/2019 

Approved by USDA 10/30/2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Item 10-6



HASS AVOCADO BOARD 

TRAVEL EXPENSE POLICY 

This policy supersedes the previously approved Hass Avocado Board Travel and Entertainment 
Expense Policy.  

1. General 
The Hass Avocado Board (HAB) will reimburse Members and Staff for all reasonable and 
necessary expenses incurred in connection with travel on authorized Board business which are 
approved as activities in support of the Act and Order. Members and Staff are responsible for 
complying with this Policy. Members and Staff submitting expenses that are not in compliance 
with this policy risk delayed, partial, or forfeited reimbursement. Members and Staff are 
expected to use prudent business judgement regarding expenses covered by this Policy.   

HAB will limit reimbursement of travel expenses specified under this policy for up to one day 
prior to the day of the event/function, the night of the event/function, and if necessary, an 
additional day after the last event/function attended. Reimbursement for any additional days will 
require written pre-approval with justification, such as evidence that no flights are available at a 
reasonable hour.  

2. Policy Application   
 

A. Hass Avocado Board Members, Board Alternates and Committee Members will be governed 
by this policy and will be referred to as “Member” throughout this document.  

B. The term “Staff” refers to employees of the Hass Avocado Board. 

C. The term “Executive Director” refers to the Hass Avocado Board’s Chief Executive.  

D. The Hass Avocado Board will be referred to as “Board” throughout this document. 

E. The term “Officer” refers to an Officer of the Board (Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, 
Treasurer, or Secretary). 

F. Business meal refers to a meal consumed by a Member or Staff when traveling on HAB 
Business or when HAB related business is discussed during the meal. Business meals are 
subject to daily allowance limits established under Section 6 (Meal Allowance) of this policy. 
The purchase of alcoholic beverages are not permitted as part of business meals.  

G. Entertainment refers to a meal or beverage consumed with a guest(s) for a valid business 
purpose. Entertainment does not count toward the daily allowance established under Section 
6 (Meal Allowance) of this policy. Alcoholic beverages are permitted as part of 
entertainment. 

H. Group meals refers to a meal consumed at HAB hosted events to which all members and 
staff are invited. Group meals do not count toward the daily allowance established under 
Section 6 (Meal Allowance) of this policy. Alcoholic beverages are permitted as part of group 
meals. 

Item 10-7



3. Pre-Approvals for Travel 
 

A. Pre-approval should be done via e-mail to the appropriate person for approval.  The pre-
approval should include the business purpose, expense, justification, comparatives or 
reasoning if appropriate.  

 
B. All staff travel, except for travel included in annual plans and budgets adopted by the Board, 

must be pre-approved by the Executive Director or an Officer of the Board. 
 

C. The Executive Director will obtain pre-approval for travel from the Chairperson. If the 
Chairperson is not available another Officer may review and approve the travel. 

 
D. All Member travel, except for approved meetings, must be pre-approved by the Board 

Treasurer. If the Board Treasurer is unavailable, another Officer may review and approve the 
travel. 
 

E. Board Treasurer, the Treasurer will obtain Pre-approval from the Chairperson or another 
Officer.  

4. Transportation 
 

A. Personal Vehicle 

1. Members and Staff who utilize personal vehicles for business purposes are required to have a 
valid driver’s license. Mileage will be reimbursed at the current allowable IRS rate. When a 
personal vehicle is used for Board business, it must carry the minimum insurance coverage 
required by law for bodily injury and property damage. Staff using their own personal 
vehicles for business shall be reimbursed for their actual miles traveled above and beyond 
their normal commute only. Members and Staff are responsible for all parking fines and 
moving violation tickets.  

 

B. Rental Vehicle 

1. In general, an intermediate or smaller car is the car type within policy; however, the size and 
type of the rental car should be appropriate for the number of people in the car and the 
road conditions on which it will be used. In-car navigation systems and electronic toll 
payment options for rental cars are considered reimbursable. All other convenience options, 
e.g. satellite radio, are considered non-reimbursable. 
 

2. When renting cars in the US, it is not necessary to purchase rental car insurance as the HAB 
maintains rental car coverage. When renting a car internationally, it is necessary to purchase 
insurance at the time of the rental. To maximize cost savings, Members and Staff should 
refuel rental cars prior to returning. Gasoline for rental car use will be reimbursed as long as 
gasoline for the car rental is purchased under a self-service option. Rental car “pre-pay” 
options will not be reimbursed. 

  

Item 10-8



C. Local Transportation/ Travel 

1. The most efficient form of transportation should be used to get to and from hotels, airports 
and other destinations. 
 

2. Allowable methods of transport include shuttles, cabs, ride share and public transportation.  
Car service is allowed only if the total cost is comparable to that of a cab/ride share fare. 

 
 

D. Air Travel 

1. All reimbursable air transportation must originate and terminate within the United States. 
Any air travel originating from outside the United States must be justified and explained with 
full documentation on the pre-approval request. Hass Avocado Committee members 
domiciled outside the United States shall be reimbursed for air travel originating and 
terminating from their domicile outside the United States. 
 

2. In order to optimize cost savings for HAB, travel arrangements should be arranged at least 
seven days in advance for domestic travel and fourteen days in advance for international 
travel. Flight insurance is encouraged and is a reimbursable expense to cover unforeseen 
expenses resulting from medical, family emergencies, accidents, and flight cancellations. All 
Members and Staff are encouraged to search for the lowest available restricted but 
changeable fare, rather than fully-refundable fare. HAB will reimburse Members and Staff for 
any justifiable flight changes. 
 

3. All Members and Staff must fly coach for all flights within the United States, Mexico, or 
Canada. For international travel to countries to other than Mexico or Canada, Members and 
Staff are permitted to fly business class for on trips exceeding six hours. First class air travel 
is not reimbursable. Personal miles or points may be used to upgrade to a higher class 
service, or the traveler may opt to pay personally for an upgrade.  
 

4. Airline receipts from the carrier shall be included with the expense report form. Travel 
agent receipts submitted must be accompanied by the airline receipt and include the E-ticket 
number and record locator for the flights in order for HAB to verify records. Travel Agent 
Invoices submitted without proper back-up will not suffice and may delay reimbursement.  
      

5. HAB will reimburse airline baggage fees for up to 1 standard checked bag. Pre- approval to 
check additional bags at HAB expense with written justification may be approved.   
 

6. When Members are attending other HAPRI association meetings during the same period as 
HAB events/functions, HAB will reimburse 50% of the air travel related expenses. 

5. Lodging 
 

1. In cities where the HAB has contracted with a specific hotel, Members and Staff will book a 
room at the contracted hotel. In cities where there is more than one contracted hotel, the 
Members and staff may choose among contracted hotels. When travel schedules require 

Item 10-9



early hotel check in and additional hotel charges are incurred, the additional charges are 
considered reimbursable.  
 

2. In cities where HAB does not have a contracted hotel, or all contracted hotels are sold out, 
the lodging selected must not exceed the maximum nightly rates (before taxes and fees) 
listed below:  

 
• $350 New York City and Washington D.C. 
• $250 All other U.S. and International locations 

 
3. At times, when demand is high and hotels are sold out, the hotel rooms still available are 

priced higher than the HAB’s stated maximum rate. In this case, Members and Staff will book 
the most reasonable option and retain a record of why the maximum rate was exceeded and 
submit for pre-approval. If a Member or Staff must cancel a hotel reservation, they should do 
so through the site/method through which the reservation was originally booked. Members 
should plan early to avoid cancellation fees. A “no-show” charge is not reimbursable, unless 
it results from unavoidable circumstance.  

6. Meal Allowance  
 

1. Members and Staff will be reimbursed up to a daily maximum of $120.00 per claimant excluding 
applicable taxes and a maximum gratuity of 20%. The maximum includes any daily combination of 
meals, snacks, minibar, and beverages. Members and Staff should ask for separate checks to avoid 
exceeding the $120.00 daily maximum. Itemized receipts are required to support all meal expenses, 
including meals charged to the hotel room.  

7. Seminars, Conferences & Conventions 
 

Members must obtain pre-approval prior to attending a seminar, conference, lecture, or other 
event of a business nature. Attendance by Staff shall be considered approved when annual plans 
and budgets are adopted by the Board, otherwise they shall follow the pre-approval process.  

8. Miscellaneous 
 

A. Incidentals:   

The Board will reimburse, with a receipt when possible, the following items: 

1. Internet, and facsimile expenses related to Board  business  

2. Laundry and dry cleaning services when traveling on Board business for more than five 
consecutive days. 

3. Tolls, parking, porter and baggage handling tips. 

B. International Travel 

1. International travel by Staff shall be considered approved when annual plans and budgets 
are adopted by the Board, otherwise they shall follow the pre-approval process. 

Item 10-10



2. All expenses must be shown in U.S. dollar values.  The currency exchange rate that will be 
accepted by the HAB is from the US Treasury Department's Financial Management Services as 
well as the daily exchange rates listed on receipts and/or credit card statements.  Use the 
“Comments” section of expense report to indicate foreign currency exchange rates 
used. 

9. Travel Expense Reports 
 

1. Falsification of a travel expense report will be brought to the Board’s attention.  
 

2. Expense reports should be submitted to the HAB Vice President of Finance after completion 
of each trip, and within a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed 3 months.  Electronic 
submission is preferred for processing. 

 
3. If obtained, a copy of the pre-approval and supporting documentation must be submitted 

with the travel expense report form. 
 

4. A receipt must be submitted for any expense over $20. The hotel invoice or folio are 
insufficient supporting documentation for room charges, please include itemized receipts for 
room charges and meals.   

 
5. It is preferable for travelers to submit original receipts; however, if originals are not 

submitted, the traveler must retain original receipts for at least three years in case of an 
audit.  Original receipts are receipts for cash expenses or hard-copy printouts from 
electronic sources, such as for airfare or lodging.  If a receipt is unavailable or lost, a written 
statement is required by the claimant providing the reason and detail of the expenditure. 

 
6. All meal and entertainment expenditures subject to reimbursement must include: 

 
• Names of people in attendance and relationship to HAB 

• Business purpose - In the case of Board functions, an invitation to Board 
functions will suffice. 

• Place where the expense took place 

• Date of expense  

• Amount to be reimbursed 

10. Travel Expense Form Approvals 
 

1. If the traveler is Staff, the expense report form shall be approved by the Executive Director. 
If the Executive Director is not available, the expense report form can be approved by the 
Board Chairperson or Board Treasurer. 

2. If the traveler is the Executive Director, the expense report form shall be approved by the 
Board Chairperson or the Board Treasurer.  

Item 10-11



3. If the traveler is an officer, the expense report form must be reviewed and approved by the 
Board Chairperson. If the Board Chairperson is unavailable, another Officer may review and 
approve the form.  

4. If the traveler is the Board Chairperson, the expense report form must be reviewed and 
approved by the Board Treasurer first. If the Board Treasurer is unavailable another Officer 
may review and approve the form. 

5. If the traveler is a Member, the expense report form must be approved by the Board 
Treasurer first. If the Board Treasurer is unavailable, another Officer may review and 
approve the form.  

11. Exclusions 
 

The following expenses are not be reimbursable: 

1. In-room mini-bar alcohol purchases.  

2. Valet Parking, unless the hotel or venue prohibits guests from parking their own vehicles. 

3. Personal expenses (movies, games, spa visits, golf outings, optional social activities.)  

4. Traffic and/or parking violation fines, towing charges, legal fees, or other payments resulting 
from illegal actions.  

5. Vehicle fuel purchases when mileage is being reimbursed. 

6. Repairs to personal vehicles.  

7. Family members’ and guest expenses,’ including room service or extra hotel charges for 
additional guests.  

8. Laundry service unless the trip is longer than five days.  

9. Lunches and dinners without a primary business purpose. The fact that lunchtime or 
dinnertime is a convenient time to meet does not convert a personal expense to a business 
expense.  

10. First-class fare  

11. Tips in excess of 20%  

12. Travel accident insurance premiums  

Item 10-12


	CAC-Board-Meeting-Agenda-w-Attendees-11-18-21
	ITEM 5.A OCTOBER BOARD MINUTES 11-21
	ITEM 5.B MEETING SCHEDULE 11-21
	ITEM 5.C Financial & Crop Update
	ITEM 7 Consider Approval of Budget Amendment No 1
	ITEM 8 MARKETING REPORT DASHBOARD 11-21
	ITEM 10 HASS AVOCADO BOARD ASA RECOMMENDATIONS 11-21
	Avocado Sustainability Advisory Request CAC.pdf
	Amended Travel and Entertainment Policy.pdf
	HASS AVOCADO BOARD
	TRAVEL EXPENSE POLICY
	This policy supersedes the previously approved Hass Avocado Board Travel and Entertainment Expense Policy.
	1. General
	2. Policy Application
	3. Pre-Approvals for Travel
	4. Transportation
	5. Lodging
	6. Meal Allowance
	7. Seminars, Conferences & Conventions
	8. Miscellaneous
	9. Travel Expense Reports
	10. Travel Expense Form Approvals
	11. Exclusions






